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Vision, Mission, and Goals
Vision Statement
The Arkansas State University System will create better educated citizens prepared for a global and technological society by providing quality undergraduate and graduate education, useful research, and dedicated public
service.

Mission Statement
The mission of the Arkansas State University System is to contribute to the educational, cultural, and economic advancement of Arkansas by providing quality general undergraduate education and specialized programs
leading to certificate, associate, baccalaureate, masters, professional, and doctoral degrees; by encouraging the
pursuit of research, scholarly inquiry, and creative activity; and by bringing these intellectual resources together to develop the economy of the state and the education of its citizens throughout their lives.
Each component of the Arkansas State University System will be characterized by:
• A supportive learning environment; personal development, leadership, and service opportunities; and facilities, technologies and support necessary to meet the needs of students, faculty, and staff;
• Racial, ethnic, gender and cultural diversity in the faculty, staff, and student body, supported by practices
and programs that embody the ideals of an open, democratic, and global society;
• Instructional technologies, student support services, and on-line and distance education to advance the purposes of teaching and learning;
• A commitment to sharing human, physical, information, and other resources among system components, and
with state agencies, schools and higher education institutions, to expand and enhance programs and services
available to the citizens of Arkansas.

Goals Statement
The Arkansas State University System will ensure access to academic excellence and educational opportunities
for Arkansans and all students who enroll in its component institutions by:
• Expanding participation through increasing access, enhancing diversity, improving service to non-traditional
students, expanding use of distance education, and describing the advantages of continuing education.
• Increasing academic productivity through improved recruitment, increased retention, accelerated graduation,
expanded continuing education opportunities, and advanced technologies.
• Producing graduates who are intellectually and ethically informed individuals with skills and knowledge to
be capable of leadership, creative thinking, and being contributing citizens.
• Creating and disseminating new knowledge through research and investigation.
• Emphasizing the recruitment, hiring, and retention of the best possible faculty, staff, and administration.
• Expanding Arkansas's economic development by providing needed graduates, offering appropriate academic
programs, marketing the system and its components as economic assets of the state, supporting research, and
commercializing ideas and discoveries.
• Increasing, diversifying, and strategically allocating resources.
In meeting these goals, the Arkansas State University System will hold itself accountable to the citizens of Arkansas for the effective and efficient use of every available human and material resource on behalf of the state
and its people.
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Governor of the State of Arkansas
Mr. Asa Hutchinson
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ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Financial Statement Presentation
This section of the Arkansas State University (the University) annual financial report presents discussion and analysis of the University's financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This discussion and analysis is prepared by the University's
financial administrators and is intended to provide information on the financial activities of the University that is both relevant and
easily understandable. Information is also provided on the University's financial position as of June 30, 2016 as further explanation
of the results of the year's financial activities. As shown in the information that follows, the overall financial position of the University has remained stable during the fiscal year.
The statements have been prepared using the format specified in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements no.
34 and 35. GASB Statement no. 34 does not require the presentation of comparative information from the previous fiscal year but
does require a discussion of any significant changes in the University's financial position or the results of its operations.
In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement no. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources. The use of net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of financial position has
also been identified. This statement amends the net asset reporting requirement in GASB Statement no. 34 and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets.
In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement no. 65, Items Previously Reported as A ssets and Liabilities. This statement is related to
Statement no. 63 in that it establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources
or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.
In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement no. 68, A ccounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The primary objective of this
Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves information
provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities.
The University's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 have been audited and Arkansas Legislative Audit has rendered the audit opinion contained herein. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board requirements this analysis
includes a discussion of the significant changes between the two fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 where appropriate.

Statement Discussion
Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position is intended to display the financial position of the University. Its purpose is to present to the reader of
the financial statements a benchmark from which to analyze the financial stability of the University. It is a "snapshot" of the University's assets, liabilities, deferred inflows, deferred outflows, and net position (assets and deferred outflows minus liabilities and deferred inflows) as of June 30, 2017, the last day of the fiscal year. Assets and liabilities are presented in two categories: current and
noncurrent. Net position is presented in three categories: net investment in capital assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net
position. Restricted net position is divided into two categories: nonexpendable and expendable. A more detailed explanation of
these categories is found in the notes that accompany the financial statements. A condensed version of the Statement of Net Position
is displayed on the following page.
Readers of the Statement of Net Position can determine answers to the following key questions as of June 30, 2017:
• Did the University have sufficient assets available to meet its existing obligations and continue operations?
• How much did the University owe to external parties including vendors and lending institutions?
• What resources did the University have available to make future investments and expenditures?
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ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Assets and Deferred Outflows
Total assets and deferred outflows increased by $306,000.
Current Assets
Current assets increased by $3.7 million.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents increased by $679,000. The Jonesboro campus had a minimum decrease of $1.1 million. Mid-South also
decreased by $811,000 due to the cash purchase of investments. Beebe, Mountain Home, and Newport had increases of approximately $2.5 million. Beebe’s increase was due to the elimination of position and cost cutting measures. Newport’s increase was due
to the redemption of investments.
Short-term Investments
Short-term investments increased by $2 million. This increase was due to the purchase of certificate of deposits at the Mid-South
campus.
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable increased by $3 million. Gross receivables increased by $2.9 million. Mid-South was the only campus to have
a decrease in accounts receivable. The decrease of $1.2 million was due to a reduction in the receivables for grant activity. The remaining campuses all had increases. The increase of $2.9 million at Jonesboro was due to receivables for construction projects and
direct lending. The $1.3 million increase at the Beebe, Mountain Home, and Newport campuses were due to increases in student
receivables based on enrollment growth and changes in dropping for non-payment and non-attendance. Allowances for doubtful
accounts decreased by $89,000. The campuses are continuing to monitor the accounts receivable balances and have increased collection activities. This has proven to be an effective method as accounts receivables balances are closely monitored and the allowance
for doubtful accounts methodology is reviewed and revised.
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ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
Inventories
Inventories increased by $304,000. The Jonesboro campus had an increase due to year-end adjustments of inventories for IT in the
amount of $335,000. Newport also experienced an increase during the year of $8,600 due to an increase in food service inventory.
The other campuses’ decrease of $39,000 was an effort to decrease inventory, maximize space, and minimize costs.
Deposits with Trustees
Deposits with trustees decreased by $2.5 million. This was due to the reimbursement of expenses related to the energy savings performance contract at the Jonesboro campus.
Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses increased by $263,000. Of this amount, the Jonesboro campus experienced the largest increase in the amount of
$220,000. This was caused by a larger amount of prepaid expenses for athletics and a new multi-year IT contract that was added.
Mountain Home had an increase of $30,000 due to an IT contract and Mid-South had an increase of $22,000 due to a revision in
monitoring payments. Beebe and Newport had a decrease of approximately $7,400.
Capital Assets, net
Capital assets, net decreased by $10.6 million. Accumulated depreciation increased from $355,995,030 in 2016 to $383,891,123 in
2017. This increase is due to new equipment, new buildings, renovations to buildings, and other improvements/infrastructure that
were added in 2016 and began depreciating in 2017. The increase in accumulated depreciation was offset by the addition of $19.3
million in capital assets and the retirement of $2 million in capital assets with accumulated depreciation of $1.3 million. Of the
$19.3 million added to capital assets, $10 million was construction in progress. Additional information about capital assets may be
found in the ‘Capital Assets’ section of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
Other Noncurrent Assets
Other noncurrent assets increased by $4.3 million.
Noncurrent Cash
Noncurrent cash increased by $5.1 million while restricted cash increased by $900,000. The increase in noncurrent cash was due to
a lower amount of plant related accounts payables at June 30, 2017 compared to June 30, 2016, as well as, an increase in unexpended
plant fund cash. The Jonesboro campus is the only campus to have a noncurrent cash balance. The decrease in restricted cash was
mostly due to the Mid-South and Mountain Home campuses. Mid-South had an increase of excess millage cash and Mountain Home
had an increase from unspent endowment funds.
Endowment Investments
Endowment investments increased by $1.2 million. This was due to an increase in the return rate of the investments compared to
previous years.
Other Long-term Investments
Other long-term investments decreased slightly by $738,000. The increase of $1.1 million in investments purchased at Mid-South
was offset by the $2 million decrease at Newport from the maturity of investments. Jonesboro and Beebe had slight increases in
other long-term investments.
Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreement
In accordance with GASB no. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements; the Jonesboro campus recorded an irrevocable splitinterest agreement of approximately $1.5 million. The campus early implemented the standard which is effective July 1, 2017. An
asset and a deferred inflow were recognized according to the standard.
Deposits with Trustees
Deposits with trustees decreased by $3.2 million. The Jonesboro campus received the remaining funds for the energy savings performance contract.
Deferred Outflows
Deferred outflows increased by $2.9 million. Nearly half of this increase was due to an increased amount of deferred outflows related to pensions. All of the campuses, other than Mid-South, recorded increases for these in accordance with GASB no. 68. Additional information about the deferred outflows related to pensions may be found in Note 8 and the Required Supplementary Information.
The remaining amount of the increase is due to the refunding bond issue at the Jonesboro campus. Additional information about the
bond issue may be found in the ‘Debt Administration’ section of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
Total liabilities and deferred inflows decreased by $6.2 million.
Current Liabilities
Current liabilities decreased by $1.6 million.
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ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased by $3.2 million. Jonesboro had a decrease of $2.5 million. This decrease was
due to a reduction in amounts due to vendors at the end of the year as well as construction and retainages payable. The Mid-South
and Newport campuses had a combined decrease of $829,000 due to reductions for vendors and salaries. Beebe had an increase of
$101,000 due to the ordering of IT equipment at year-end.
Bonds, Notes, and Leases Payable
Bonds, notes, and leases payable increased by $777,000 and was attributable to the new debt issued at the Jonesboro and Newport
campuses.
Unearned Revenues
Unearned revenues increased by $698,000. This was due to amounts received for tuition and fee for the second summer term that
were recorded as unearned revenue at the end of 2017. Nearly all of this amount was attributable to the increase of unearned revenue
for the second summer term at the Jonesboro campus.
Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities decreased by $3.6 million.
Bonds, Notes, and Leases Payable
The decrease of $8.3 million was mostly attributable to the principal payments during fiscal year 2017.
Accrued Other Postemployment Benefits Payable
The campuses also recorded an additional $909,000 for other post-employment benefits. Additional information about the other
postemployment benefits may be found in Note 12.
Net Pension Liability
The University’s portion of the net pension liability increased by $3.9 million. These amounts were recorded in accordance with
GASB no. 68. Additional information about the net pension liability may be found in Note 8 as well as the Required Supplementary
Information.
Deferred Inflows
Deferred inflows decreased by $934,000. $2.4 million of the decrease
was the amount related to pensions and was recognized in fiscal year
2017 in accordance with GASB no. 68. The deferred inflows are recorded in conjunction with the deferred outflows for pensions and net
pension liability discussed previously. The remaining increase of $1.5
million was recorded as part of the irrevocable split-interest agreement
at the Jonesboro campus as previously mentioned in the Noncurrent
Asset section.
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ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
Net Position
Total net position increased by $6.5 million. The percentage of each net position category is displayed in the chart below.

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Net investment in capital assets decreased by $4.7 million. This decrease was mainly attributable to recognition of depreciation expense at all of the campuses. In previous years, there have been large increases of construction projects, primarily at the Jonesboro
campus, to offset the amount of depreciation recognized.
Restricted, Nonexpendable
Restricted, nonexpendable net position increased by $982,000.
• Scholarships and Fellowships—Restricted, nonexpendable net position for scholarships and fellowships increased by $415,000.
This was due to the Jonesboro and Beebe campuses’ increase in the market value of endowment investments held by the ASU
Foundation for scholarship purposes.
• Renewal and Replacement—The Mid-South campus has restricted, nonexpendable net position for renewal and replacement.
There were no changes to the net position during the fiscal year.
• Loans—The restricted, nonexpendable net position for loans decreased in the amount of $43,000. This was due to the Perkins
Loan activity at the Jonesboro campus.
• Other—Restricted, nonexpendable net position for other purposes than those mentioned above increased by $611,000. This was
due to an increase in investment earnings during the year on endowments for purposes other than scholarships.
Restricted, Expendable
Restricted, expendable net position decreased by $181,000.
• Scholarships and Fellowships—Restricted, expendable net position for scholarships and fellowships decreased by $339,000. This
increase was mostly attributable to a reclassification of net assets at the Mid-South campus from scholarships and fellowships to
other.
• Research—Restricted, expendable net position for research increased by $19,000. This slight increase is due to year end balances
of restricted grants for research purposes.
• Loans—The restricted, expendable net position for loans did not change for fiscal year 2017. Mid-South is the only campus to
have a restricted, expendable net position amount for loans.
• Capital Projects—The restricted, expendable net position for capital projects decreased by $988,000. This was related to the completion and final reimbursement of capital appropriations for the Humanities and Social Sciences building at the Jonesboro campus. In addition, Beebe’s net position decreased due to expenses related to the new ERP System.
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ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
• Debt Service—The restricted, expendable net position for other purposes than those listed above decreased slightly by $8,100. The
Mid-South campus is the only campus to have funds restricted for debt service due to their debt structure for bonds payable.
• Renewal and Replacement—The Mid-South campus has restricted, expendable net position for renewal and replacement. There
was an increase of $158,000 due to the bond requirements of these funds.
• Other—The restricted, expendable net position for other purposes than those listed above increased by $978,000. The decrease of
$139,000 of non-research grant activity at the Jonesboro campus, was offset by $439,000 increases of non-research grant activity at Mountain Home and Newport. The remaining amount increase of $677,000 was mostly attributable to the reclassification
of net position at the Mid-South campus.
Unrestricted
Unrestricted net position increased by $10.4 million. The majority of this increase was a $7.2 million increase at the Jonesboro campus due to an increased effort to grow the University’s reserves balance. In addition, Beebe’s unrestricted net position also increased
by approximately $1.6 million in an effort to increase their reserves balance. Mid-South and Mountain Home also had increases in
the amounts of $1.4 million and $363,000, respectively; while Newport had a slight decrease of $154,000.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The net position as presented on the Statement of Net Position is based in part on the financial activities that occurred during the
fiscal year as presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. This statement's purpose is to present
the revenues generated and received by the University, both operating and nonoperating, the expenses incurred by the University,
both operating and nonoperating, and all other financial gains or losses experienced by the University during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017.
Generally, revenues from operations are received in exchange for the University providing services or products to students and other
constituencies. Operating expenses are those costs paid or incurred in producing those services or products or in carrying out the
mission of the University. Nonoperating revenues are financial inflows to the University resulting from nonexchange transactions;
that is, the University does not provide a specific service or product in exchange for them. For example, appropriations from the
state are considered nonoperating revenue because the legislature does not receive a direct and commensurate benefit from the University in exchange for providing the appropriation. A condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
for fiscal year 2017 compared to fiscal year 2016 is shown on the next page.
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ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Revenues
Total revenues increased by approximately $5.6 million.
Operating Revenues
Total operating revenues increased by $4.2 million.
Tuition and Fees, net
Net tuition and fees increased by $1.5 million. Gross tuition and fee revenue increased by $850,000. All campuses had a modest
tuition increase from 2016 to 2017. Mid-South was the only campus to have a decrease of net tuition and fee revenue in the amount
of $284,000. This was primarily the result of a decrease in their Secondary Technical Center revenue. All campuses, other than
Mid-South and Mountain Home, experienced higher enrollment when comparing 2016 to 2017. Although Mountain Home had
slightly lower enrollment numbers, they showed an increase in net tuition and fees of approximately $148,000. The increase in tuition and fee revenue also led to a decrease in scholarship allowances. Scholarship allowances decreased by $665,000. This decrease
in scholarship allowances caused a slight decrease in scholarship expense as noted in the scholarship expense section following.
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ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
Grants and Contracts
Operating grants and contracts increased by $1 million. The Jonesboro, Mountain Home and Newport campuses each had increases;
while Beebe and Mid-South had decreases. Jonesboro’s, Mountain Home’s and Newport’s increases of $390,000, $462,000 and
$1.1 million were offset by decreases of $215,000 at Beebe and $714,000 at Mid-South. The increases at the campuses were due to
new grants that were received during the fiscal year. As the available grant resources continue to decline; there will continue to be
fluctuations in the amount of operating grants and contracts revenue as more colleges and universities compete for these dollars.
Sales and Services
Sales and services decreased slightly by $15,000. This is comprised of a small $10,000 increase for the Jonesboro campus. Beebe’s
decrease of $12,000 was due to a reduction in the amount received for cattle. Mountain Home showed a decrease of $12,000 due to
a reduction in the amount of tickets sold for campus events.
Auxiliary Enterprises, net
Auxiliary enterprises, net increased by approximately $596,000. The Jonesboro campus experienced an increase of $721,000. This
was the result of slight increases in revenues across several of the auxiliary operations at the Jonesboro campus including athletics,
bookstore, and food services. The Beebe campus saw a minor decrease of $143,000. Mid-South realized a small increase of
$12,000. The Mountain Home campuses had a decrease of $61,000 due to decreased bookstore and ticket sales. The Newport campus realized an increase of $67,000 from food services.
Self Insurance
Self insurance revenues increased slightly by $89,000. During fiscal year 2017, there were no increases in premiums for either the
employee withholding or employer matching amounts.
Other
Other operating revenues increased by $1 million. The Jonesboro campus’s increase of $974,000 is due to the addition of the NYIT
College of Osteopathic Medicine. In addition to the Jonesboro campus’s increase, the Mid-South campus also had an increase of
$56,000 due to refunds from prior years and Newport had an increase of $28,000 due to prior year recoveries. Beebe experienced a
decrease of $43,000 due to a decline in gas lease revenues and Mountain Home had a slight decrease of $4,300.
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Nonoperating Revenues
Total nonoperating revenues increased by $1.4 million.

Federal Appropriations
Federal appropriations decreased by $185,000. In prior fiscal years, the Jonesboro campus received several federal awards. These
amounts continue to decrease as available grant resources continue to decline.
State Appropriations
State appropriations increased by approximately $371,000. The Jonesboro, Beebe, and Newport campuses had increases of
$249,000, $62,000, and $139,000, respectively. The Mid-South and Mountain Home campuses showed decreases of $29,000, and
$50,000, respectively. The increases and decreases at the campuses were due to variances in general appropriation funding.
Stimulus Funds (ARRA-American Recovery and Reinvestment Act)
Nonoperating revenues from stimulus funds (ARRA) decreased by $25,000. The Jonesboro campus was the only campus remaining
with ARRA funds. As expected, these funds were expended during the fiscal year.
Grants and Contracts
Nonoperating grants and contracts decreased by $2 million. There was a decrease of $1.4 million on the Jonesboro campus. The
decrease was caused from a decline in federal financial aid. With the exception of Beebe and Newport, that experienced increases of
$148,000 and $26,000, respectively; Mid-South, and Mountain Home experienced decreases of $307,000, and $506,000, respectively. This is a reflection of the decline in federal financial aid.
Sales and Use Taxes
Sales and use taxes decreased by $14,000. Beebe saw an increase of $61,000 while Newport experienced a decrease of $75,000.
Property Taxes
Property tax revenues decreased by $220,000 on the Mid-South campus and by $22,000 on the Mountain Home campus.
Gifts
Revenues from gifts increased by $1.1 million. Jonesboro had an increase of $502,000, which was primarily due to a larger amount
received by the Red Wolves Foundation for athletics. The Mid-South campus had an increase of $161,000 due to increased donations for the Wild Game Dinner and additional amounts received from their Foundation. The Mountain Home campus experienced
an increase of $406,000 due to amounts received from the Foundation. The Newport campus had a slight increase of $4,000.
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Investment Income
Investment income increased by $2.4 million. All campuses experienced increases during fiscal year 2017. The Jonesboro campus
experienced the largest increase of $1.6 million due to the market conditions of 2017. Beebe and Mid-South had increases of
$99,000 and $732,000, respectively, also due to higher interest rates, better returns and unrealized gains. Mountain Home and Newport had a combined increase of $2,900. The University continues to invest in low-risk investments that will provide a stable source
of revenue, such as interest bearing bank accounts and certificates of deposits.
Expenses
Total expenses decreased by $4.3 million.
Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses decreased by $4.2 million.
Additional information on operating expenses can be found in the tables and charts that follow.

Personal Services
Personal services increased by $1.9 million. Each of the campuses, other than Beebe and Mountain Home, experienced increases in
personal services. The decreases of $380,000 for Beebe and $68,000 for Mountain Home were minimal for the campuses. Additionally, an amount of $909,000 was recorded by the campuses for other post-employment benefits. More information on this may be
found in Note 12. The campuses were able to provide modest salary increases for faculty and staff which affirms the significance of
faculty and staff to the mission of the University.
Scholarships and Fellowships
Scholarships and fellowships decreased by $788,000. As previously discussed, there was also a decrease in scholarship allowances.
Gross scholarships and fellowships decreased $2.1 million. While Mid-South and Mountain Home experienced a decrease in headcount enrollment from fall 2016 to fall 2017; the other campuses experienced an increase in headcount. The campuses continue to
offer competitive institutional scholarships to students as federal financial aid declines.
Supplies and Services
Supplies and services decreased by $7.7 million. With the exception of a $346,000 increase at the Mountain Home campus, all other
campuses experienced a decrease of expenses for supplies and services. The majority of this decrease was due to a decline of $7.3
million of expenses on the Jonesboro campus. In 2016, there were several renovation projects that did not meet the capitalization
threshold criteria and were appropriately expensed. There were many fewer of these projects for 2017. The campuses continue to be
committed to cost containment efforts and pursue conservative levels of spending.
Self Insurance
Self insurance expenses increased by $2.6 million. Although pharmacy claims decreased during the year; medical claims greatly
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increased. Additionally, there was an increase in the unpaid claims liability recorded at year end. The Mid-South campus also
joined the University’s plan on February 1, 2017.
Depreciation
Depreciation expense decreased slightly by $260,000. All campuses, other than Jonesboro and Newport, showed a decrease due to
assets that were either disposed of or became fully depreciated during fiscal year 2016. The increases at Jonesboro and Newport
were a result of new additions or renovations at the campuses that were added in 2016 and began depreciating in 2017. Additionally,
as new projects were completed in 2017, depreciation expense will increase next year as a result of these. Depreciation expense will
continue to increase each year as new buildings and renovations are completed and begin depreciating.
Other
Other operating expenses were essentially the same as in 2016. These expenses are related to the Perkins Loan program on the
Jonesboro campus.
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Nonoperating Expenses
Total nonoperating expenses decreased slightly by approximately $71,000.
Interest
Interest expense decreased by $206,000. All of the campuses experienced lower interest costs. Jonesboro experienced the largest
decrease of $71,000. Although the campus had higher interest expense due to notes payable; the campus had lower interest expense
on bonds payable. The campus issued refunding bonds during the fiscal year. Additional information on the bond issue may be
found in Note 5.
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets
During the fiscal year, the University had a loss of $632,000 on capital assets compared to a loss of $694,000 in fiscal year 2016.
Newport was the only campus to show a gain in the amount of $12,000. This was due to receiving more funds from the sale of capital assets. The Jonesboro campus’s statements reflect a loss of $638,000. This loss is attributable to the deletion of equipment and
also improvement projects that were no longer on campus. Beebe and Mid-South had small losses in the amount of $5,800 and $87,
respectively, due to equipment deletions.
Other Changes
Other revenues, expenses, gains and losses totaled $1.7 million. This amount decreased by $14 million.
Capital Appropriations
Capital appropriations decreased by $2.1 million. The Jonesboro campus experienced the majority of the decrease due to a decline
in state appropriations received for capital improvements on campus. The Beebe campus received only one small capital appropriation for fiscal year 2016 in the amount of $20,000 and did not receive any during fiscal year 2017. None of the other campuses received capital appropriations during the fiscal year.
Capital Grants and Gifts
Capital grants and gifts decreased by $12 million. The Jonesboro campus had a decline of $11.5 million compared to fiscal year
2016. This was attributable to funds that were received in 2016 for the expansion of Centennial Bank Stadium. Beebe and MidSouth also had decreases of $205,000 and $510,000, respectively, due to lower capital gifts at Beebe and lower capital grants at MidSouth. Mountain Home and Newport had increases of $54,000 and $210,000, respectively, due to capital gifts received.

Statement of Cash Flows

The third and final statement presented is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement presents detailed information about the University's financial activities from the perspective of their effect on cash. The information is presented in five components. The first
component presents cash inflows and outflows resulting from the University's normal operating activities. The second component
presents cash flows from noncapital financing activities; that is, cash received from or spent for activities that do not result from normal operations, capital financing activities, or investing. The third component presents cash inflows and outflows resulting from
capital and related financing activities such as debt issuance, lease agreements, and capital appropriations, grants, or gifts. The
fourth component presents cash flows resulting from investing activities such as purchases and liquidations of investments and interest, gains, and losses generated by these activities. The fifth component of the Statement of Cash Flows is a reconciliation of the net
operating revenues (expenses) for the fiscal year as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
to the net cash provided (used) by operating activities as presented in component one of the Statement of Cash Flows.
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Capital Assets

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 were as follows:

Land
The University had one addition of land and land improvements in the amount of $11,431 at the Mid-South campus during fiscal
year 2017.
Construction in progress
Construction in progress decreased by 73.42%. This decrease is mainly attributable to the completion of construction projects at the
Jonesboro campus. The Jonesboro campus experienced a decrease of $13,836,570 during the year. $23,765,778 was transferred as
completed construction. The major projects completed throughout the year include: energy savings performance contract, student
apartment upgrades, and football field renovations. The Jonesboro campus was the only campus to reflect a balance in construction
in progress at the end of 2017. The balance at the Jonesboro campus is mainly attributable to several small projects on the campus
including: road improvements, Convocation Center improvements, Student Union improvements, football operations building, and
improvements to the library.
Livestock
The decrease of 25.07% is attributable to a decline of the Jonesboro campus livestock herds of $56,767 and a slight decline of the
Beebe campus’s herds in the amount of $2,558.
Intangibles-Software in development
The Beebe, Mountain Home and Newport campuses are implementing a new ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) System. The new
software was still in development as of June 30, 2017. The University’s threshold for capitalizing software is $1 million and the
Beebe and Newport campuses have capitalized $1,546,565 and $1,045,752, respectively. It is anticipated that the future amounts
spent on the ERP System will meet the capitalization threshold and an additional amount will be capitalized during fiscal year 2018.
The expected go-live date for the new software is late fall 2017.
Intangibles-Easements
The University had no additions or disposals of easements during fiscal year 2017.
Intangibles-Software
The University’s decrease of $388,574 was the amount of annual depreciation during the fiscal year. No additions to software occurred in fiscal year 2017.
Buildings
The University experienced a decrease in the total value of buildings. This is a result of a much lower amount of additions to build28
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ings. In fiscal year 2017, the campuses added $2,058,201 compared to $18,487,038 in fiscal year 2016. The largest portion of the
$2,058,201 was at the Jonesboro campus in the amount of $1,783,036 and includes the completion of the Dyess Theatre building and
final construction amounts added to the Humanities and Social Sciences building, and the Child Development and Research Center.
Also, accumulated depreciation increased from $248,272,372 in 2016 to $264,652,796 in 2017 as a result of additional buildings that
were added in 2016 and began depreciating in fiscal year 2017.
Improvements and infrastructure
The 14.42%, or $17,711,771, increase in improvements and infrastructure is attributable to the completion of projects at the Jonesboro campus during the fiscal year. These include: energy savings performance contract, renovations to the parking deck, student
apartment upgrades, track improvements, Student Union enhancements, and football field renovations.
Equipment
Equipment decreased by 3.71%, or $627,337, during the year. Equipment additions increased slightly from $3,964,908 in 2016 to
$4,606,580 in 2017. Of the additions for fiscal year 2017, $291,722 were capital gifts received by the campuses and noted on the
Cash Flow Statement as a noncash transaction. Equipment purchases remained fairly the same in 2017 as in 2016. Depreciation
expense decreased from $5,413,091 in 2016 to $5,203,550 in 2017. The campuses disposed of equipment during the year with a net
value of $30,367.
Library/audiovisual holdings
The University’s decrease of $6,121, or 0.38%, is due to the amount of depreciation exceeding the amount of purchases during the
year. Total purchases in 2017 were $312,837 compared to $291,434 in 2016. Depreciation expense remained fairly consistent increasing slightly from $318,947 in 2017 to $315,713 in 2016.
Additional information on capital assets by campus may be found in Note 4 in the notes to the financial statements.

Debt Administration

The University’s financial statements indicate $203,215,553 in bonds payable, $9,632,008 in notes payable and $16,073,556 in capital leases payable at June 30, 2017.
The Jonesboro campus issued refunding bonds during 2017. A summary of the two issues and the bonds that were refunded is below:
$13,870,000
$23,150,000

2007 Student Fee Bonds
2007 Housing Bonds
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The University’s bonded indebtedness consisted of revenue bonds secured by tuition and fees, property taxes, and auxiliary revenues, such as housing and parking fees. The revenue bonds were issued for educational buildings, student housing, parking improvements, property purchases, plant improvements, and auxiliary facilities.
The $9,632,008 in notes payable consisted of three notes for the Jonesboro campus. These include an $8,000,000 note to renovate
Wilson Hall for the DO School, a $1,204,000 note for energy improvement projects through the state’s sustainable revolving loan
fund, and a $1,000,000 note for pedestrian improvements . At June 30, 2017, the outstanding amounts for these notes were
$6,641,192, $1,023,400 and $702,513, respectively. Additionally, the Mountain Home campus has a note payable with a remaining
balance of $152,537 for a land purchase and the Newport campus has $1,112,366 in notes payable for the construction of a Hospitality Building at the ASU-Newport Jonesboro campus location.
The Jonesboro campus issued a capital lease during 2016 in the amount of $15,226,080 for energy savings projects on the campus.
The savings from utility billings will be used to pay the debt. There have been no principal payments paid yet and the current balance of the debt is $15,226,080. In addition, the campus has $3,846 in capital leases comprised of a lease for a lawn mower. The
campus also issued a capital lease during 2017 for IT equipment valued at $545,160. After a down payment during the year, the remaining balance is $358,082. The Newport campus also issued a capital lease during 2017 for IT equipment. The amount of the
lease is $606,934 and a balance of $485,548 remains at June 30, 2017.
Additional information on the University’s debt may be found in Notes 5, 6 and 15 in the notes to the financial statements.

Economic Outlook

The economic outlook of the University remains sound.
In 2017, economic indicators in the U.S. point to continued growth after the Great Recession, and the Federal Reserve has indicated
that they will be raising rates at the Federal level in 2018. Currently, rates have held steady, which has limited the University’s ability to generate favorable returns on its financial assets; however, the lower rates positively affect the ability to strategically manage
long-term debt and borrowing costs. The University’s strong credit rating of A1 continues to provide favorable financing terms and
options.
At the state level, the economy is stable, and revenues are tracking
slightly above forecast levels. Arkansas continues to conservatively manage its financial resources; as a result, state appropriations to
the University have remained static with no expectation of appreciable increases in the near term. Public higher education will continue to compete with other state agencies and priorities for appropriate levels of funding.
The University continues to proactively manage its enrollment and
scholarship administration to strike an appropriate balance between
academic standards, demographic and economic changes, and net
tuition revenue. In addition, the University has increased its emphasis on obtaining competitive research funding, and has seen an
increase in grant and contract revenue. The University continues to
review all of its existing and potential revenue sources and is working to explore and develop new and innovative funding opportunities.
The University strategically and prudently manages its financial
resources. Capital investments are extensively reviewed at the
board and executive level, strategic cost containment and resource
allocation remain high priorities of the University, and budgets are
carefully developed, monitored, controlled, and adjusted as warranted. These efforts will continue as the University strategically
manages the challenges and opportunities posed by the current
economic environment and the furtherance of its mission.
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NOTE 1.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity
Jonesboro
Arkansas State University-Jonesboro, an Institution of Higher Education of the State of Arkansas, developed from one of four State
agricultural schools established in 1909 by an act of the Arkansas
General Assembly. The University opened as a vocational high
school in 1910 and was reorganized as a junior college in 1918.
The name was changed to State Agricultural and Mechanical College by an act of the Legislature in 1925. Authority to extend the
curriculum, offer senior college work, and grant degrees was granted in 1931. In 1933, the Legislature changed the name of the College to Arkansas State College. Master-level programs were begun
in 1955. In January 1967, the Legislature passed an act authorizing
a change in the name of Arkansas State College to Arkansas State
University, effective July 1, 1967. The University’s first doctoral
degree in Educational Leadership was awarded in 1992.
Beebe
Arkansas State University-Beebe began in 1927 as Junior Agricultural School of Central Arkansas. In 1955, the Arkansas General
Assembly designated the school a campus of Arkansas State College. The branch campus was designated as Arkansas State College-Beebe Branch. The institution established a campus at the
Little Rock Air Force Base in 1965. The campus became Arkansas
State University-Beebe in 1967. Act 90 of 2001 eliminated the
word “branch” from the references to campuses of Arkansas State
University.
ASU-Heber Springs, a Center of ASU-Beebe, was officially established by Act 426 of 1999 in response to the community’s desire to
have a two-year college presence in Cleburne County.
Effective July 1, 2003, Foothills Technical Institute in Searcy
merged with ASU-Beebe to become ASU-Searcy, a Technical
Campus of ASU-Beebe.
Mountain Home
In 1991, the Arkansas General Assembly created Mountain Home
Technical College through the merger of Baxter County Community/Technical Center and the North Arkansas Community/Technical
Center in Mountain Home. On October 19, 1993, the voters of
Baxter County authorized the levy of a two mill tax to support operations at the Arkansas State University-Mountain Home campus.
The institution was designated Arkansas State University-Mountain
Home in 1995.
Newport
Under the provisions of Ark. Code Ann. § 6-53-405, White River
Technical College was consolidated with Arkansas State University
-Beebe campus effective July 1, 1992 and named Arkansas State
University-Newport. Subsequently, the Newport campus separated
itself from Beebe to become a stand-alone campus.
Effective July 1, 2001, Delta Technical Institute was merged to the
University to become the Arkansas State University Technical Center. The Technical Center is part of the Newport campus and consists of two campuses located at Marked Tree and Jonesboro.
Mid-South
Mid-South Vocational Technical School, an institution of higher
education of the State of Arkansas and located in West Memphis,
began operations January 18, 1982. Effective July 1, 1991, the
College's name was changed to Mid-South Technical College under
the provision of Ark. Code Ann. § 6-53-301. On February 16,
1993, the voters approved a four mill property tax for the creation
of the community college. During April 1993, the Arkansas State
Board of Higher Education approved the change in status of Mid-
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South Technical College to Mid-South Community College. Effective July 1, 2015 under the provisions of Ark. Code Ann. § 6-60102, Mid-South Community College merged with the Arkansas
State System to become Arkansas State University-Mid-South.
System
In 1998, the Arkansas State University Board of Trustees approved
the recognition and designation of the Arkansas State University
System to encompass the campuses and locations.
The Arkansas State University System is governed by the Board of
Trustees, which consists of five persons appointed by the Governor
of the State of Arkansas. Terms of appointments are for five years
and Board members may be re-appointed by the Governor for a
second five year term.
Component Units
The Arkansas State University System Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is a legally separate, tax-exempt component unit of Arkansas State University (the University). The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising and asset management organization to develop
and supplement the resources that are available to the University in
support of its mission and programs. The 33 member board of the
Foundation is self-perpetuating and consists of graduates and
friends of the University. Although the University does not control
the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority
of resources, or income thereon, which the Foundation holds and
invests are restricted to the activities of the University by donors.
Because these restricted resources held by the Foundation may only
be used by, or for the benefit of the University, the Foundation is
considered a component unit of the University under the guidelines
established by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement Number 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations
are Component Units. Accordingly, the financial statements of the
Foundation are discretely presented in the University’s financial
statements in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement
Number 39.
During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Foundation transferred
property, equipment and funds of $3,159,110 to the University for
academic support. Complete financial statements for the Foundation may be obtained from the Foundation at P.O. Box 1990, State
University, AR 72467-1990.
The Foundation reports under the requirements of the Not-for Profit
Organizations Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from
GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation features. No
modifications have been made to the Foundation’s financial information in the University’s financial statements.

Financial Statement Presentation

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) issued Statement no. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and
Management Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. GASB Statement no. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and
Universities, followed this in November 1999. The financial statement presentation required by GASB no. 34 and no. 35 provides a
comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the University’s assets,
liabilities, net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position
and cash flows.
In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement no. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. The use of net position as the residual of all
other elements presented in a statement of financial position has
also been identified. This statement amends the net asset reporting
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requirement in Statement no. 34 and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources into the definitions of the required components of the
residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position,
rather than net assets.
In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement no. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This statement is related to
Statement no. 63 in that it establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources
or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities.
In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement no. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions. The primary objective of this
Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state
and local governments for pensions. It also improves information
provided by state and local governmental employers about financial
support for pensions that is provided by other entities.
In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement no. 81, Irrevocable
Split-Interest Agreements. Although the effective date of the Standard is for fiscal year 2018, the University early implemented the
requirements of the Standard in accounting for an irrevocable splitinterest agreement at the Jonesboro campus in fiscal year 2017.

Basis of Accounting

For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered a
special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities. Accordingly, the University’s financial statements have been
presented using the economic resources focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized
when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation is incurred.
The consolidated University financial statements were prepared
from the separate statements of the five (5) campuses. Other than
the receipt and disbursement of student financial aid between the
campuses, financial transactions among the campuses were not
considered material in amount or consequence and, accordingly,
were not eliminated from the consolidated statements.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Land, buildings, improvements and infrastructure, equipment, audiovisual holdings and construction in progress are recorded at cost at
the date of acquisition or acquisition value at the date of donation in
the case of gifts. Livestock held for educational purposes is recorded at cost or estimated acquisition value. Library holdings are recorded at cost or a stated rate per volume. For the campuses that
record library holdings at a stated rate per volume, the additions for
the fiscal year are displayed as a separate line item on the Statement

of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Library holdings that are capitalized do not include periodicals, microfilm, microfiche and government documents. The University follows capitalization guidelines established by the State of Arkansas. The University’s capitalization policy for equipment is to record, as assets,
any items with a unit cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated
useful life greater than one year. Improvements to buildings, infrastructure, and land that significantly increase the value or extend the
useful life of the asset are capitalized. Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense when incurred. Interest
costs incurred are capitalized during the period of construction.
During the fiscal year, $66,577 of interest costs was capitalized for
the Jonesboro campus.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the
estimated lives of the assets, generally 15 to 30 years for buildings,
15 years for improvements and infrastructure, 10 years for library
and audiovisual holdings, and 3 to 20 years for equipment. Capital
assets are presented net of accumulated depreciation where applicable. Depreciation is begun the fiscal year following the date of
acquisition for all campuses other than Mid-South. The Mid-South
campus begins depreciation in the month of acquisition. No depreciation is taken the year of disposal.
Easements are considered intangible assets and are capitalized at
either the cost at the date of acquisition or acquisition value at the
date of donation in the case of gifts.
Software costing $1,000,000 or more is capitalized as an intangible
asset and is amortized over the life of the software.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues

Revenues of the University are classified as either operating or
nonoperating according to the following criteria:
Operating Revenues: Operating revenues result from
activities that have characteristics of exchange transactions; that is, the University receives payment in exchange
for providing services or products to students or other
constituencies. Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, sales and services of auxiliary operations, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, and most federal, state, local, and private grants are
the main categories of operating revenues for the University.
Nonoperating Revenues: Nonoperating revenues are
those revenues that result from nonexchange transactions
or from activities specifically defined as nonoperating by
the GASB. Examples of nonoperating revenues include
state appropriations, certain grants and contracts, sales
and use taxes, property taxes, and investment income.
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State appropriations from the state are considered nonoperating under the definitions set forth by the GASB because the University does not provide a direct and commensurate benefit to the legislature in exchange for them.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the University considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of assets the University is legally entitled to, but for which payment has not been received as of the close
of the fiscal year at June 30, 2017. The various sources of the University’s receivables are detailed in a subsequent note. Receivables
are presented net of any estimated uncollectible amounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Investments

An investment is a security or other asset that (a) a government
holds primarily for the purpose of income or profit and (b) has a
present service capacity based solely on its ability to generate cash
or be sold to generate cash. The University accounts for its investments, except for nonparticipating contracts, at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement no. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application. Fair value is the defined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Changes in unrealized gain (loss) on the carrying value of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.
Nonparticipating contracts are reported at cost in accordance with
GASB Statement no. 31, Accounting and Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools.
The University’s policy is to report all endowment funds administered by other parties for investment purposes as investments in the
financial statements.
Detailed information of the University’s investments is provided in
Note 2.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost with cost being generally determined
on a first-in, first-out or average basis.

Noncurrent Cash and Investments

Cash and investments that are externally restricted for endowment
scholarships and other purposes or to purchase or construct capital
assets, are classified as noncurrent assets in the Statement of Net
Position. Additionally, this classification includes other longterm investments with original maturity dates greater than one
year.

Restricted/Unrestricted Resources

The University has no formal policy addressing which resources
to use when both restricted and unrestricted net position are available for the same purpose. University personnel decide which
resources to use at the time expenses are incurred.

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues consist primarily of amounts received prior to
the end of the fiscal year for tuition and fees and certain auxiliary
activities that relate to a subsequent accounting period. For example, payments for tuition and fees for the second summer term or
season football tickets for the upcoming fall season received prior
to June 30, 2017 are treated as unearned revenues. They are considered liabilities of the University until earned.
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Compensated Absences Payable

Employee vacation, sick leave, and compensatory time earned, but
not paid, and related matching costs are recorded as a liability and
expense on the University’s financial statements as required by
generally accepted accounting principles. An estimate is made to
allocate this liability between its current and noncurrent components.

Deposits with Trustees

Deposits with trustees are externally restricted and held by various
banks for the University. They are maintained in order to make
debt service payments, to maintain sinking or reserve funds as required by bond covenants, or to purchase or construct capital assets.

Noncurrent Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities include (1) principal amounts of bonds payable, notes payable, and capital lease obligations with contractual
maturities greater than one year; (2) estimated amounts for accrued
compensated absences and related matching costs and other liabilities that will not be paid within the next fiscal year; (3) estimated
amounts for deposits held that will not be paid within the next fiscal
year; (4) other
postemployment benefits payable (Note 12); (5) net pension liability (Note 8); and (6) the refundable federal portion of the Perkins
Loan Program.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System
(APERS) and Arkansas Teacher Retirement System (ARTRS) and
additions to/deductions from their respective fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
each retirement system. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value.

Property Taxes

The Mid-South and Mountain Home campuses receive property tax
revenues. These property taxes are levied in November based on
property assessment made between January 1 and May 31 and are
an enforceable lien on January 1 for real property and June 1 for
personal property. The tax records are opened on the first business
day of March of the year following the levy date and are considered
delinquent after October 15 of the same calendar year.
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Sales and Use Taxes

Effective January 2003, the electors of Jackson County, by a majority vote, approved the levy of a one-half of one percent (1/2%) sales
and use tax for the ASU-Newport campus. This tax will be utilized
for capital improvements and operation and maintenance. Additionally, the electors of Cleburne County approved the levy of a one
-half of one percent (1/2%) sales and use tax for the Heber Springs
campus. The tax will also be utilized for capital improvements and
operation and maintenance.

Funds Held in Trust for Others

The University holds deposits as custodian or fiscal agent for students, student organizations, and certain other organized activities
related to the University.

Net Position

The University’s net position is classified as follows:
Net Investment in Capital Assets: This classification represents the
University’s total investment in capital assets, net of outstanding
debt obligations related to those assets. To the extent debt has been
incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are
not included in this category.
Restricted Net Position: Within this classification there are two (2)
categories of net position:
Restricted, expendable: Restricted expendable net position
includes resources for which the University is legally or contractually obligated to spend only in accordance with restrictions imposed by external parties.

Restricted, nonexpendable: Nonexpendable restricted net position consists of endowment and similar type funds for which
donors or other external parties have stipulated that the principal or corpus is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity
and invested only for the purpose of producing income which
may either be expended in accordance with the donors’ or
external parties’ stipulations or added to the principal.
Unrestricted Net Position: Unrestricted net position represents
resources of the University that are unrelated to capital items and
not externally restricted. These resources may be expended at the
discretion of the University’s governing board in the educational
and general operations of the University and in furtherance of its
mission.

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances

Student tuition and fees, and certain other revenues received from
students are reported net of scholarship discounts and allowances in
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.
Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between
the University’s stated rates and charges and the amount actually
paid by students and/or third parties making payments on behalf of
the students. Under this approach, scholarships awarded by the
University are considered as reductions in tuition and fee revenues
rather than as expenses. Additionally, certain governmental grants,
such as Pell grants, and payments from other federal, state or nongovernmental programs, are required to be recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues in the University’s financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such programs are applied
to tuition, fees, and other student charges, the University has reported a corresponding scholarship discount or allowance.
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NOTE 2.
PUBLIC FUND DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The above deposits do not include cash on deposit in the state treasury and cash on hand maintained by the University in the amounts of $388,072
and $69,190 at June 30, 2017, respectively. Also, the above amount does not include $465,527 in certificates of deposits held by the Foundation for
license plate scholarships and $182,659 of money market funds classified as cash and cash equivalents. The above total deposits include certificates of deposits of $15,866,879 reported as investments and classified as nonnegotiable certificates of deposit. Additionally, the deposits do not
include money market checking accounts of $427 reported as deposits with trustees.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the University’s deposits may not be returned to it. The University’s policy states
that investments made by the University, excluding those funds donated for endowment purposes, should be secure with no risk of loss. All investments must be fully collateralized with such collateral being evidenced by a bonded, third-party custody receipt provided to the campus making the
investment. Collateral may be of three types including: (a) United State government securities, (b) securities of agencies of the United States, or
(c) general obligation bonds of cities, counties, or school districts of the state of Arkansas. The University’s bank balance of $111,014,531 was
fully collateralized at June 30, 2017.

Deposits with Trustees

At June 30, 2017, the University’s deposits with trustees totaled $4,432,329. Other than the money market checking accounts of $427, the details
of the deposits with trustee by campus are below.
Jonesboro
At June 30, 2017, the University’s deposits with trustee of $2,065,262 were primarily invested in the Federated Treasury Obligations Fund, a money market treasury fund. This fund was rated Aaa-mf by Moody’s Investors Service and consisted of short-term repurchase agreements and U.S.
Treasuries. The effective average maturity was approximately 31 days.
The deposits with trustee consisted of funds either obligated as debt reserves for the University’s bond issues or earmarked for specific capital projects.
Fair market value – The University categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
The fair market value of the deposits with trustee at June 30, 2017 is shown below:
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Mid-South
At June 30, 2017, the University’s deposits with trustee of $2,366,587 were invested by US Bank. The fund invests solely in First American Government Obligations, a money market treasury fund. The objective of the fund, rated AAAm and Aaa-mf by Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s
Investors Service, respectively, is to maximize current income consistent with preserving capital and maintaining daily liquidity. The effective
average maturity was approximately 23 days.
The deposits with trustee consist of funds obligated as debt reserves for the University’s bond issues.
Fair market value – The University categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
The fair market value of the deposits with trustee at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

Mountain Home
At June 30, 2017, the University’s deposits with trustee of $53 were invested in U.S Treasury debt securities. This fund was rated Aaa-mf by
Moody’s Investors Service and consisted of Treasury bills, bonds and notes. The effective average maturity was approximately 44 days.
The deposits with trustee consisted of funds either obligated as debt reserves for the University’s bond issues or earmarked for specific capital projects.
Fair market value – The University categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
The fair market value of the deposits with trustee at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

University Investments (Excluding Endowment Funds)

At June 30, 2017, the University’s investments, excluding endowment funds, consisted of corporate bonds of $1,742,631, U.S. agencies of
$3,776,052, negotiable certificates of deposit of $1,731,964, U.S. Treasury notes of $824,478, mutual bonds of $335,910, and equity funds of
$4,024,631. Details of the investments by campus are below.
Jonesboro
At June 30, 2017, the University’s investments, excluding endowment funds, consisted of corporate bonds of $1,132,611, U.S. agencies of
$3,725,002 and negotiable certificates of deposit of $1,731,964.
The corporate bonds will mature as follows:
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The U.S. agencies will mature as follows:

The negotiable certificates of deposits will mature as follows:

Credit risk – The credit quality ratings of the corporate bonds by Moody’s Investors Service are shown below:

The credit quality ratings of the U.S. agencies by Moody’s Investors Service are shown below:

Interest rate risk - The corporate bonds had an estimated weighted average maturity of 9.827 years at June 30, 2017. The U.S. agencies had an estimated weighted average maturity of 11.446 years at June 30, 2017. The negotiable certificates of deposit had an estimated weighted average maturity of 3.358 years at June 30, 2017. The University’s investment policy does not specifically limit operating investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The investment policy states the portfolio shall be designed to
attain an above market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account investment risk constraints and cash flow requirements.
Concentration of credit risk – The University does not limit the amount of operating funds invested in any one issuer.
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Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the University will not be able to
recover the value of its investments. At June 30, 2017, negotiable certificates of deposits of $1,731,964 were exposed to custodial credit risk.
Fair market value – The University categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
The fair market value of the corporate bonds at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

The fair market value of the U.S. agencies at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

The fair market value of the negotiable certificates of deposit at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

Mid-South
At June 30, 2017, the University’s investments consisted of corporate bonds of $610,020, U.S. agencies of $51,050, U.S. Treasury notes of
$824,478, mutual bonds of $335,910, and equity funds of $4,024,631. The corporate bonds will mature as follows:
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The U.S. agencies will mature as follows:

The U.S Treasury notes will mature as follows:

Credit risk – The credit quality ratings of the corporate bonds by Moody’s Investors Service are shown below:

The credit quality ratings of the U.S. agencies by Moody’s Investor Service are shown below:

The credit quality ratings of the U.S. Treasury notes by Moody’s Investor Service are shown below:

Interest rate risk - The corporate bonds had an estimated weighted average maturity of 3.022 years at June 30, 2017. The U.S. agencies had an estimated weighted average maturity of 4.542 years at June 30, 2017. The U.S. Treasury notes had an estimated weighted average maturity of 3.537
years at June 30, 2017. The University’s investment policy does not specifically limit operating investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The investment policy states the portfolio shall be designed to attain an above
market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account investment risk constraints and cash flow requirements.
Concentration of credit risk – The University does not limit the amount of operating funds invested in any one issuer.
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Fair market value – The University categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
The fair market value of the corporate bonds at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

The fair market value of the U.S. agencies at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

The fair market value of the U.S. Treasury notes at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

The fair market value of the mutual bonds at June 30, 2017 is shown below:
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The fair market value of the equity funds at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

Endowment Investments
Except for the endowment investments of the R.E. Lee Wilson, Sr. Trust and the V.C. and Bertie H. Kays Educational Trust, all remaining endowment funds are included in an investment pool administered by the Arkansas State University Foundation, Inc. Endowment investments totaling
$5,159,592 were exposed to custodial credit risk because they were uninsured securities held by the Counterparty Trust Department or Agent and
not in the University’s name.
The Jonesboro campus’s portion of the investment pool administered by the Arkansas State University System Foundation, Inc. was 13.73% or
$9,090,361 and consisted of the following types of investments:

The Foundation provides for investments in various investment securities, which generally are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit,
and overall market volatility risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that changes in the
values of investment activities will occur.
The fair market value of the investments at June 30, 2017 is shown below:
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The Beebe campus’s portion of the investment pool administered by the Arkansas State University System Foundation, Inc. was 1.10% or $726,378
and consisted of the following types of investments:

The Foundation provides for investments in various investment securities, which generally are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit,
and overall market volatility risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that changes in the
values of investment activities will occur.
The fair market value of the investments at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

R.E. Lee Wilson, Sr. Trust Investments
The R.E. Lee Wilson, Sr. Trust of $3,491,900 consisted of the following types of investments held in trust by a third party for the Jonesboro campus:

The corporate bonds and U.S. agencies will mature as follows:
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Credit risk – The credit quality ratings of the corporate bonds and U.S. agencies by Moody’s Investor Services are below:

Interest rate risk – The trust portfolio consists of corporate bonds and U.S. agencies had an estimated weighted average maturity of 6.310 and
13.786 years, respectively, at June 30, 2017.
The fair market value of the investments at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

V.C. and Bertie H. Kays Educational Trust Investments
The V.C. and Bertie H. Kays Educational Trust of $1,667,692 consisted of the following types of investments held in trust by a third party for the
Jonesboro campus:

The corporate bonds and U.S. agencies will mature as follows:
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Credit risk – The credit quality ratings of the corporate bonds and U.S. agencies by Moody’s Investor Services are below:

Interest rate risk – The trust portfolio consists of corporate bonds and U.S. agencies had an estimated weighted average maturity of 7.297 and
13.986 years, respectively, at June 30, 2017.
The fair market value of the investments at June 30, 2017 is shown below:

NOTE 3.
INCOME TAXES
The Institution is tax exempt under the Internal Revenue Service code and is also exempt from state income taxes under Arkansas law. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is made in the financial statements.
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NOTE 4.
CAPITAL ASSETS
Following are the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2017:

*Includes $31,865 for prior year depreciation expense for equipment and $7,654 for library/audiovisual holdings
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NOTE 5.
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
The summary of long-term debt is as follows:
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The changes in long-term liabilities are as follows:
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Total long-term debt principal and interest payments are as follows:
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:

Refunding of Debt
Arkansas State University-Jonesboro
On November 17, 2016, the University issued $13,870,000 in tax exempt refunding bonds for the Jonesboro campus with interest rates of 3 to 4
percent to advance refund $13,830,000 of outstanding bonds dated June 1, 2007 with interest rates of 3.65 to 5 percent. Net proceeds of
$14,406,164, after payment of $157,465 for bond issuance costs and a premium of $698,164 were remitted to an escrow agent to provide for all
future payments of the defeased bonds. U.S. Treasury obligations of $14,406,063, purchased by the escrow agent, were pledged for the retirement
of these bonds. As a result of this refunding, the 2007 Series bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Statement of Net Position. The bonds will be called on September 1, 2017. The University advance refunded the bonds to reduce
its total debt service payments by $2,289,567 over the next twenty (20) years and to obtain an economic gain of $1,730,266. The University received an additional $4,535 from the bond issue to apply toward the debt payments of the new issue. The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $576,148. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow of resources, will be amortized through the year 2037 using the straight-line method.
On November 17, 2016, the University issued $23,150,000 in tax exempt refunding bonds for the Jonesboro campus with interest rates of 2 to 4
percent to advance refund $23,570,000 of outstanding bonds dated June 1, 2007 with interest rates of 3.65 to 5 percent. Net proceeds of
$24,593,089, after payment of $244,681 for bond issuance costs and a premium of $1,691,603 were remitted to an escrow agent to provide for all
future payments of the defeased bonds. U.S. Treasury obligations of $24,592,989, purchased by the escrow agent, were pledged for the retirement
of these bonds. As a result of this refunding, the 2007 Series bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Statement of Net Position. The bonds will be called on September 1, 2017. The University advance refunded the bonds to reduce
its total debt service payments by $3,887,256 over the next twenty (20) years and to obtain an economic gain of $2,988,283. The University received an additional $3,833 from the bond issue to apply toward the debt payments of the new issue. The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $1,023,089. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow of resources, will be amortized through the year 2037 using the straight-line method.
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NOTE 6.
CAPITAL LEASES
The net value of assets held under capital leases totaled $16,191,450 at June 30, 2017. The present value of the net minimum lease payments is as
follows:
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NOTE 7.
COMMITMENTS
The University was contractually obligated for the following at June 30, 2017:
A. Construction Contracts
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B. Operating Leases (Noncapital leases with initial or remaining noncancellable lease terms in excess of 1 year)
Various leases for land, office space, classroom/lab space, laundry services, farm equipment, printers/copiers, computers, and other office equipment with terms ranging from 24 to 120 months
1.

Future minimum rental payments (aggregate) at June 30, 2017: $3,674,124

2.

Future minimum rental payments for the five (5) succeeding fiscal years and thereafter:

Rental payments for the above operating leases, for the year ended June 30, 2017, were approximately $1,370,895.
NOTE 8.
RETIREMENT PLANS
Defined Contribution Plans
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association (TIAA)
Plan Description
The University participates in TIAA, a defined contribution plan. The plan is a 403(b) program as defined by Internal Revenue Service Code of
1986 as amended, and is administered by TIAA. The plan offers fixed annuities, variable annuities, and mutual funds. Arkansas law authorizes
participation in the plan.
Funding Policy
The mandatory employee contribution is 6%, and the University contributes 10% of earnings for all eligible employees. The Mid-South campus
contributes 14% of earnings for employees hired prior to July 1, 2016. Employees may also make voluntary contributions to the plan subject to
current regulations. Employees vest after one year of service. For employees who do not meet the vesting requirement; the employer contributions
are considered forfeited and are used to offset future employer contributions. During fiscal year 2017, $57,568 of forfeitures were applied to employer contributions. The University's and participants' contributions for the year ended June 30, 2017 were $8,521,742 and $7,412,330 respectively.
Variable Annuity Life Insurance Company (VALIC)
Plan Description
The Jonesboro, Beebe, Mountain Home, and Newport campuses participates in VALIC, a defined contribution plan. The plan is a 403(b) program
as defined by Internal Revenue Service Code of 1986 as amended, and is administered by VALIC. The plan also offers fixed annuities, variable
annuities and mutual funds.
Funding Policy
The mandatory employee contribution is 6%, and the University contributes 10% of earnings for all eligible employees. Employees may also make
voluntary contributions to the plan subject to current regulations. Employees vest after one year of service. For employees who do not meet the
vesting requirement; the employer contributions are considered forfeited and are used to offset future employer contributions. During fiscal year
2017, there were no forfeitures applied to employer contributions. The University’s and participants' contributions for the year ended June 30, 2017
were $1,342,521 and $1,152,716, respectively.
VOYA
Plan Description
The Mid-South campus participates in VOYA, a defined contribution plan. The plan is a 403(b) program as defined by Internal Revenue Service
Code of 1986 as amended, and is through VOYA. The plan offers fixed and variable annuities.
Funding Policy
The mandatory employee contribution is 6%, and the University contributes 10% of earnings for all eligible employees. The campus contributes
14% of earnings for employees hired prior to July 1, 2016. Employees may also make voluntary contributions to the plan subject to current regulations. Employees vest after one year of service. For employees who do not meet the vesting requirement; the employer contributions are considered forfeited and are used to offset future employer contributions. During fiscal year 2017, there were no forfeitures applied to employer contributions. The University's and participants' contributions for the year ended June 30, 2017 were $664,369 and $393,687, respectively.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Arkansas Teacher Retirement System
Plan Description
The University contributes to the Arkansas Teacher Retirement System (ATRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.
The plan was established by the authority of the Arkansas General Assembly with the passage of Act 266 of 1937. The general administration and
responsibility for the proper operation of the System is vested in the fifteen members of the Board of Trustees of the Arkansas Teacher Retirement
System. Detailed information about ATRS’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued ATRS Financial Report available at http://
www.artrs.gov/publications.
Benefits Provided
Benefit provisions are set forth in Arkansas Code Annotated, Chapter 24 and may only be amended by the Arkansas General Assembly. ATRS
provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Members are eligible for full retirement benefits at age 60 with five or more years of credited
service or at any age with 28 or more years of credited service. Members with 25 years of credited service who have not attained age 60 may receive an annuity reduced by 5/12 of 1% multiplied by the number of months by which the early retirement precedes the earlier of (1) completion of
28 years of credited service or (2) attainment of age 60. The normal retirement benefit, paid monthly, is determined based on (1) the member’s
final average salary (effective April 1, 1998, computed using highest three years salary) and (2) the number of years of service.
Disability retirement benefits are payable to members who are vested and demonstrate total and permanent incapacity to perform the duties of their
position while in active employment. The disability annuity is computed in the same manner as the age and service annuity.
Survivor benefits are payable to qualified survivors upon the death of an active, vested member. Eligible spouse survivors receive a survivor annuity that is based on the member’s years of service credit prior to their death, and minor child survivors receive a percentage of the member’s highest
salary earned. ATRS also provides a lump sum death benefit for active and retired members with 10 years of actual service. The amount for contributory members will be up to $10,000 and up to $6,667 for noncontributory members. The amount will be prorated for members who have both
contributory and noncontributory service. Members with 15 or more years of contributory service will receive the full $10,000.
A cost of living adjustment (COLA) is payable on July 1 of each year to retirees, certain survivors, and annuity beneficiaries who received monthly
benefits for the previous 12 months. The COLA is calculated by multiplying 100% of the member’s base retirement annuity by 3%.
Act 1096 of 1995 created a teacher deferred retirement option plan (T-DROP) for members with 30 or more years of service credits. Act 1590 of
1999 allows for participation in the T-DROP after 28 years of credited service with a reduction of 6% for each year under 30 years. Effective September 1, 2003, Act 992 of 2003 requires employers to make contributions on behalf of all members participating in T-DROP at rates established
by the Board of Trustees. Member election to enter T-DROP is irrevocable, and additional service credit cannot be accumulated. During participation in T-DROP, ATRS will credit the member account with plan deposits and interest. The plan deposits are the member’s normal retirement benefit reduced by 1% for each year of service. For members who entered T-DROP prior to September 1, 2003, the reduction is 1/2 of 1% (.5%) for
contributory service and 3/10 of 1% (.3%) for noncontributory service for each year above 30 years of service. The T-DROP account accrues interest at a variable rate that is set annually by the ATRS Board of Trustees. T-DROP deposits into member accounts cease at the completion of 10
years of participation in the program; however, a member may continue employment and will continue to receive interest on the account balance at
the 10-year plus interest rate that is also set annually by the Board of Trustees. When T-DROP participation ceases, the member may receive the TDROP distribution as a lump-sum cash payment or an annuity or may roll it over into another tax-deferred account. A member may also elect to
defer all or part of the distribution into a T-DROP cash balance account held by ATRS.
The University no longer offers new employees the option of electing Arkansas Teacher Retirement System as a retirement plan. Employees who
had already elected this option will continue to participate in the plan. This became effective on July 1, 2011 for the Jonesboro, Beebe, Mountain
Home and Newport campuses and June 8, 2015 for the Mid-South campus.
The University reported payables to ATRS in the amount of $54,465 as of June 30, 2017. This amount has been reported on the Statement of Net
Position as a current liability.
Contributions
ATRS has contributory and noncontributory plans. The contributory plan has been in effect since the beginning of ATRS. The noncontributory plan
became available July 1, 1986. Act 81 of 1999, effective July 1, 1999, requires all new members to be contributory and allowed active members as
of July 1, 1999, until July 1, 2000, to make an irrevocable choice to be contributory or noncontributory. Act 93 of 2007 allows any noncontributory
member to make an irrevocable election to become contributory on July 1 of each fiscal year.
ATRS’s funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at statutorily established rates based on annual actuarial valuations. The employer contribution rate was 14% for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. Contributory members are required to contribute 6% of gross wages to
ATRS. Employee contributions are refundable if ATRS-covered employment terminates before a monthly benefit is payable. Employee contributions remaining on deposit with ATRS for a period of one or more years earn interest credits, which are included in the refund.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
The collective net pension liability of $4,411,442,759 was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. Each employer’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
employer’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the total contributions of all participating employers.
At June 30, 2017, the University reported a liability of $14,053,207 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. At June 30, 2016, the
University’s proportion was .32% of the collective net pension liability.

66

ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the University recognized pension expense of $1,120,650. At June 30, 2017, the University reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

$1,211,404 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from University contributions subsequent to the measurement
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability, net pension liability, and certain sensitivity information was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016.
The significant assumptions used in the valuation and adopted by the ATRS Board of Trustees were as follows:
Actuarial cost method

Entry age normal

Amortization method

Level percentage of payroll, closed

Amortization period

30 years

Asset valuation method

4-year smoothed market for funding purposes; 20% corridor

Wage inflation

3.25%

Salary increases

3.25% to 9.10%, including inflation

Investment rate of return

8.00%

Retirement age

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition. Last
updated for the 2011 valuation pursuant to an experience study for the period July 1,
2005 - June 30, 2010.

Mortality

RP-2000 Mortality Table for males and females projected 25 years with scale AA (95%
for men and 87% for women)

Investment Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of geometric real rates of return were adopted by the plan’s trustees after
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considering input from the plan’s investment consultant and actuary.
For each major asset class that is included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016, these best estimates are summarized in
the following table:

Discount Rate
A single discount rate of 8.0% was used to measure the total pension liability. This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on
pension plan investments of 8.0%. The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions
will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be 14% of payroll. Based on these assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability using the discount rate of 8.00%, as well as what the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7.00%) or 1 percentage point higher (9.00%) than the current
rate:

Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System
Plan Description
The University (other than the Mid-South campus) contributes to the Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System (APERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The plan was established by the authority of the Arkansas General Assembly with the passage of Act
177 of 1957. The costs of administering the plan are paid out of investment earnings. The general administration and responsibility for the proper
operation of the System is vested in the nine members of the Board of Trustees of the Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System. Detailed
information about APERS’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued APERS Financial Report available at http://www.apers.org/
annualreports.
Benefits Provided
Benefit provisions are established by state law and may be amended only by the Arkansas General Assembly. Members are eligible for full benefits under the following conditions:

•
•
•
•
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At age 65 with 5 years of service,
At any age with 28 years of actual service,
At age 60 with 20 years of actual service if under the old contributory plan (prior to July 1, 2005), or
At age 55 with 35 years of credited service for elected or public safety officials.
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The normal retirement benefit amount, paid on a monthly basis, is determined by the member’s final average salary and years of service. A member may retire with a reduced benefit at age 55 with at least five years of actual service or at any age with 25 years of actual service. APERS also
provides for disability and survivor benefits.
As of January 1, 2012, the University no longer offers new employees the option of electing Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System as a
retirement plan. Employees who had already elected this option will continue to participate in the plan.
The University reported payables to APERS in the amount of $31,944 as of June 30, 2017. This amount has been reported on the Statement of Net
Position as a current liability.
Contributions
Contribution provisions applicable to the participating employers are established by the Board and based on the actuary’s determination of the rate
required to fund the plan. The additional cost of public safety service for public safety employees is determined by the actuary as well.
The System was established as a contributory plan. However, with the passage of Act 793 of 1977, existing members and previous members were
offered the opportunity to choose to become non-contributory members. Anyone who joined the System subsequent to January 1, 1978 and had not
previously been a member was automatically enrolled as a non-contributory member.
Act 2084, enacted by the 2005 General Assembly, directed APERS to establish a new contributory plan that became effective July 1, 2005. All
covered employees first hired on or after July 1, 2005, contribute 5% of their salary into the plan. Employees hired before June 30, 2005 who were
in the non-contributory plan were given the option to join the new contributory plan by December 31, 2005. Non-contributory members who did
not join the new contributory plan by that deadline remain non-contributory members.
Members may have employee contributions in the System if (a) they were members of APERS on or before January 1, 1978, (b) they are members
first hired after July 1, 2005, or (c) they have purchased service in the System.
Employee contributions are refundable if APERS-covered employment terminates before a monthly benefit is payable. Employee contributions
remaining on deposit with APERS can earn interest (at the rate of 4% per year), which is included in the refund. Pursuant to the provisions of Act
625 of 1983 and Act 1097 of 1993, certain agencies employing individuals in public safety positions are required to remit additional contributions
in amounts determined by an independent actuary.
Employee refunds do not include contributions made by the employers. Employers contributed 14.50% of compensation for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
The collective net pension liability of $2,391,348,072 was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. Each employer’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
employer’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the total contributions of all participating employers.
At June 30, 2017, the University reported a liability of $8,493,072 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. At June 30, 2016, the
University’s proportion was .36% of the collective net pension liability.
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the University recognized pension expense of $939,814. At June 30, 2017, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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$858,174 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from University contributions subsequent to the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability, net pension liability, and certain sensitivity information was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016.
The significant assumptions used in the valuation and adopted by the APERS Board of Trustees, were as follows:
Actuarial dost method

Entry Age Normal

Discount rate

7.50%

Inflation rate

2.50%

Salary increases

3.95% - 9.85%

Investment rate of return*

7.50%

Mortality table

RP-2000 Combined Healthy, projected to 2020 using projection scale BB, set-forward
two years for males and one year for females

*Net of investment and administrative expenses
Investment Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for the 10-year period from 2016 –
2025 were based upon capital market assumptions provided by the plan’s investment consultant. For each major asset class included in the plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016, these best estimates are summarized in the following table:
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Discount Rate
A single discount rate of 7.50% was used to measure the total pension liability. This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return
on pension plan investments of 7.50%. The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability using the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.50%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.50%) than the current
rate:

NOTE 9.
NATURAL CLASSIFICATIONS BY FUNCTION
The University’s operating expenses by function for the year ended June 30, 2017 were as follows:

NOTE 10.
RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES
Accounts receivables at June 30, 2017 as reported in the Statement of Net Position, were as follows:
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Accounts receivable from students are reported net of allowances for doubtful accounts. This amount was $2,565,273 at June 30, 2017. Grants and
contracts receivable are comprised of amounts due for sponsored research projects, scholarships, and other restricted activities. Auxiliary enterprises receivables consist of amounts due at year-end for vending, bookstore, and other types of auxiliaries.
Notes and Deposits Receivable at June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Notes receivable pertains to loans awarded to students through the Federal Perkins Loan Program. Notes receivable at June 30, 2017 was reduced
by an allowance for doubtful accounts of $292,176 for the current portion and $1,645,079 for the noncurrent portion.
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities at June 30, 2017 are detailed below:

NOTE 11.
MUSEUM COLLECTION
The financial statements do not include the University’s museum collection, which consists of numerous historical relics, artifacts, displays and
memorabilia. The total value of this collection has not been established.
NOTE 12.
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
The University offers postemployment health care benefits to all employees who officially retire from the University and meet certain age- and
service-related requirements. Health care benefits are offered through Arkansas State University’s Self Insured Retiree Medical Plan (the Plan).
Employees between the ages of fifty-five (55) and sixty (60) shall become eligible for retirement benefits in the calendar year in which the sum of
their age and the number of years of continuous full-time service to the University totals seventy (70). Employees sixty (60) years of age and older
are eligible for retirement benefits in the calendar year in which they have at least ten (10) years of continuous full-time service to the University.
Certain employees who retiree under a voluntary retirement window approved by the Board of Trustees of Arkansas State University are also eligible for benefits. Employees electing retirement will receive the following benefits:

•

Medical insurance (including spouse and unmarried dependents, if covered at the time the employee retires or unless a qualifying event occurs) will be provided at one-half of the total cost (one-half of what ASU pays and half of the employee premium). Retirees at ASU MidSouth who retired prior to July 1, 2017 pay the employee rates for retiree insurance. (Employee only coverage of $0 for fiscal year 2017, and
$64.08 effective July 1, 2017, increasing as employee rates increase.) Effective July 1, 2017, newly retiring ASU Mid-South employees will
pay the System rates. There are currently no ASU Mid-South retirees with employee and spouse, employee and children, or family coverage.

The benefits provided to retirees enumerated above will terminate at the earlier of the age at which the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare coverage or the date the retiree becomes eligible for similar benefits under any other arrangement for members in a group, whether insured or selfinsured.
The benefits provided to the spouse of the retiree enumerated above shall terminate the earlier of either a) when such benefits terminate for the early
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retiree or b) the spouse becomes eligible for Medicare. Should the spouse of a retiree not have reached the age of Medicare eligibility at the time
benefits to the retiree are terminated, the retiree may pay the total cost of continuing such coverage until such time as the spouse becomes eligible
for Medicare.

•

Life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment benefits equal to the scheduled amount at the time of the retiree's retirement will continue at no cost to the retiree and will terminate at age sixty-five (65). Retirees at ASU Mid-South who retired prior to February 1, 2017, are
eligible for a life insurance benefit of $20,000 that continues for the lifetime of the retiree and are responsible for 100% of the cost.

•

Continuing eligibility of the retiree, their spouse and unmarried dependent children for tuition discounts in effect for current University employees until the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare.

The University adopted GASB Statement no. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions during fiscal year 2008. This statement requires governmental entities to recognize and match other postretirement benefit costs with related
services received and also to provide information regarding the actuarially calculated liability and funding level of the benefits associated with past
services. The Plan is considered a single-employer plan and consists of hospital benefits, major medical benefits, a prescription drug program, and a
preferred care program. The authority under which the Plan’s benefit provisions are established or amended is the University Board of Trustees.
Recommendations for modifications are brought to the Board by the University’s President. Any amendments to the obligations of the plan members or employer(s) to contribute to the plan are brought forward by the University’s President and approved by the Board of Trustees. Any amendments to the obligations of the plan members or employer(s) to contribute to the plan are brought forward by the University’s President and approved by the Board of Trustees.
In accordance with GASB Statement no. 45, the University accrued an additional $1,444,145 in retiree healthcare expense during fiscal year 2017.
This compares to $1,348,749 accrued during fiscal year 2016.
The Plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report. For inquiries relating to the Plan, please contact Arkansas State University System Office,
501 Woodlane, Suite 600, Little Rock, AR 72201.
The required schedule of funding progress contained in the Required Supplementary Information immediately following the financial statements
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.
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Summary of Key Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Valuation year

July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2017

Actuarial cost method

Projected Unit Credit, level dollar

Amortization method

30 years, level dollar open amortization 6

Asset valuation method

N/A

6

Open amortization means a fresh-start each year for the cumulative unrecognized amount.

Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate

3.0%

Inflation rate

2.5%

Projected payroll growth rate

1.0% per year through 2018, then 2.5% thereafter.

Heath care cost trend rate for
medical and prescription drugs

Trend rates are 7% for fiscal year 2018 grading down to reach an ultimate trend rate of
5.00% in 2031.

General Overview of the Valuation Methodology
The estimation of the retiree healthcare benefit obligation is generally based on per participant contributions developed from recent periods for
which claims experience is available. The University provided actual per participant premiums for 2017.
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and
actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the Plan at the time of each valuation and on the pattern
of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan
members in the future.
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Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce shortterm volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.
Valuation Year

July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2017

Date of Census Data

June 30, 2017

Actuarial Cost Method

Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method; Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) amortized on a level dollar basis over 30 years.

Annual Health Care Trend Rate

Trend rates are 7% for fiscal year 2017 grading down to reach an ultimate trend rate of
5.00% in 2031.

Discount Rate

3.0% per year

Inflation Rate

2.5% per year

Spouse Age Difference

Husbands are assumed to be three years older than wives for current and future retirees
who are married. 40% of employees are assumed to be married and cover their spouses
upon retirement.

Mortality

Society of Actuaries (SOA) table.

Participation Rates

90% of employees currently enrolled in a medical plan are assumed to participate in the
retiree medical program. All employees are assumed to participate in the retiree life
insurance program.

Retirement Rates

Rates of retirement vary by age and service for eligible employees as shown below:
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Termination Rates

Sample rates of termination are shown below:

NOTE 13.
SELF INSURANCE PROGRAM
Beginning July 1, 1994, Arkansas State University established a self-funded health benefit plan for employees and their eligible dependents. All
campuses of the University participate in the program, which is administered by Cigna. BlueAdvantage administered the plan through December
31, 2016. The ASU Mid-South campus joined the plan on February, 1, 2017.
At June 30, 2017, approximately 4,297 active employees, their dependents, former employees and retirees were participating in the program. For
those participating in single coverage, the University pays 86% of the total premium. The University pays 76% of the total premium for those participating in full family coverage, 71% for those participating in employee and spouse coverage, and 70% for those participating in employee and
children coverage. Retirees, including early retirees, pay 50% of their coverage and the University covers the other 50%. The University does not
offer insurance to retirees or their spouses who are eligible for Medicare. A retiree’s spouse can continue coverage after the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare at a cost of 100% of the single coverage rate until they too are eligible for Medicare. Employees and retirees on the ASU MidSouth campus had their premiums grandfathered at the current cost share through June 30, 2017. The University paid the entire premium for employees and retirees with employee only coverage, 41% for family, 49% for employee and spouse and 66% for employee and children.
The University estimates its unpaid health claims liability at June 30, 2017 to be $1,406,353 with Cigna. This liability is established for incurred
but not reported medical and pharmacy claims and is based on the calculation prepared by Lockton. Details of this liability are shown below.

The University purchases specific reinsurance to reduce its exposure to large claims. HCC Life is the reinsurance carrier. Under the specific arrangement, the reinsurance carrier pays for claims for covered employees that exceed $275,000.
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NOTE 14.
ENDOWMENT FUNDS
Jonesboro
The University has donor-restricted endowment funds. Investment income on the amount endowed is restricted for scholarships and other purposes. All endowment funds are maintained as investments. Investments reported at fair value, include bonds/fixed income, mutual funds and other
managed investments. The endowment net position at June 30, 2017 was $13,379,598. Of this amount, $12,403,045 was nonexpendable and the
remaining $976,553 was expendable.
State law allows a governing board to expend a portion of the net appreciation in the fair value of the assets over the historic dollar value of the
fund unless the applicable gift document states otherwise. State law stipulates that such expenses are to be for the purpose for which the endowment funds were established.
For endowments held by the Arkansas State University Foundation, the University’s policy is for annual expenses from the endowment funds not to
exceed 4% of the five (5) year average market value as determined at December 31st of the previous year. In periods with no market value appreciation, the University limits the spending to actual income generated by the endowment fund assets.
Beebe
The University has donor-restricted endowment funds. Investment income on the amount endowed is restricted for scholarships and other purposes. All endowment funds are maintained as investments. Investments reported at fair value, include bonds/fixed income, mutual funds and other
managed investments. The endowment net assets at June 30, 2017 were $175,194. Of this amount, $159,784 was nonexpendable and the remaining $15,410 was expendable.
State law allows a governing board to expend a portion of the net appreciation in the fair value of the assets over the historic dollar value of the
fund unless the applicable gift document states otherwise. State law stipulates that such expenses are to be for the purpose for which the endowment funds were established.
The University’s policy is for any interest earnings to be expensed from the endowment funds for scholarships.
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Jonesboro

The University’s pledged revenues at June 30, 2017 are as follows:

NOTE 15.
PLEDGED REVENUES
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Note: Issues with Tuition and Fees pledged, 2017 Gross Revenue—$87,880,382

Jonesboro (continued)
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Note: Issues with Tuition and Fees pledged, 2017 Gross Revenue—$10,411,011

Beebe
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Mid-South
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Note: Issues with Tuition and Fees pledged, 2017 Gross Revenue—$7,419,734

Newport
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NOTE 16.
RISK MANAGEMENT
The University is exposed to various risks of loss including, but not necessarily limited to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; nonperformance of duty; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. In response to this diverse risk exposure, the University has
established a comprehensive risk management approach including, where acceptable and prudent, retention of the associated risks to the extent that
funds are available from general operations or reserves to cover losses. In those situations where risk retention has been deemed not acceptable or
prudent, the University has practiced risk transfer through participation in the State of Arkansas’s risk management programs or through the purchase of commercial insurance coverage.
The University participates in the Arkansas Fidelity Bond Trust Fund administered by the Government Bonding Board. The fund provides coverage of actual losses incurred as a result of fraudulent or dishonest acts committed by state officials or employees. Each loss is limited to $300,000
with a $2,500 deductible. Premiums for coverage are remitted by the Arkansas Department of Finance and Administration from funds deducted
from the University’s state treasury funds.
The University secures vehicle insurance coverage through participation in the Arkansas Multi-Agency Insurance Trust Fund administered by the
Risk Management Division of the Arkansas Insurance Department. The general objective of the program is to allow participating agencies an affordable means of insuring their vehicle fleets. The University pays an annual premium for this coverage. The fund provides a coverage pool, but,
employs a reinsurance policy to reduce its exposure to large losses.
The University also participates in the Worker’s Compensation Revolving Fund administered by the Arkansas Department of Finance and Administration. Premium assessments are determined annually by the Department of Finance and Administration and deducted on a quarterly basis from
the University’s state treasury funds.
Additional information relating to the state’s insurance plans and funds is available in the State of Arkansas’s Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report.
The University also purchases commercial property insurance coverage to indemnify against unacceptable losses to buildings and business personal
property through participation in the Arkansas Multi-Agency Insurance Trust Fund administered by the Risk Management Division of the Arkansas
Insurance Department. Decisions concerning the appropriate retention levels and types of coverage are made by the campus administrators. During the past three fiscal years, no claims have exceeded the amount of coverage. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage
from the prior year in the major categories of risk. The University pays an annual premium for this coverage. The fund provides a coverage pool,
but, employs a reinsurance policy to reduce its exposure to large losses.
Additional polices purchased by the University include a group accident policy that provides accidental death and dismemberment and accident
medical expenses coverage for certain categories of participants in intercollegiate sport activities of the university; a business travel policy that
provides accidental death and dismemberment, medical evacuation and repatriation coverage for individuals traveling on university business; a
comprehensive K&R policy to cover costs and provide assistance in certain crisis events involving university directors, officers, employees, faculty
and students; and a foreign commercial package policy that provides coverage for foreign commercial general liability, auto liability/physical damage, voluntary compensation and employers liability and foreign travel accident and sickness.

NOTE 17.
OPTIONAL VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM
Mountain Home
During fiscal year 2016, the campus offered an optional voluntary incentive program to certain employees. To be eligible, an employee must have
been 55 years of age with 15 years of continuous full-time employment as of June 30, 2016. Employees will receive one-half of their salary for a
period of two years. An annual payment was paid to the employee’s retirement fund on August 5, 2016 and will be paid again in July 2017. The
University has accrued the payable for the one (1) employee who elected to participate in this program. As of June 30, 2017, the liability totaling
$13,352 has been recorded on the University's financial statements as a current liability.
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NOTE 18.
LEASE OBLIGATIONS WITH RED WOLVES FOUNDATION
Jonesboro
In January 2015, the University entered into an agreement with the Red Wolves Foundation. This lease agreement allowed the Red Wolves Foundation to obtain financing to complete the expansion of the football stadium and press box (Centennial Bank Stadium). The agreement allows the
Red Wolves Foundation to utilize the space and complete construction of the facility which will ultimately belong to the University. The term of
the lease is 10 years and the amount of the financing was $13 million. On August 27, 2015, the lease agreement with the Red Wolves Foundation
was modified to secure additional financing for the Centennial Bank Stadium project. The amount was increased from $13 million to $17 million.
NOTE 19.
LEASE AGREEMENTS
Jonesboro
On July 21, 2016, the University entered into a public-private partnership with ZP NO. 315, LLC (Zimmer) to construct and operate undergraduate
and graduate student housing facilities on approximately 13 acres of land owned by the University. Zimmer is responsible for all construction
costs, maintenance costs and operational costs of the housing. The University will receive rent annually for the use of the land beginning in fall
2017. The term of the lease is thirty-five years.
On June 13, 2017, the University entered into a ground lease agreement and building lease agreement with Centennial Bank to facilitate the construction of a building on the campus to be used as a Campus Welcome Center. The building will be approximately 3,833 square feet on 0.35 acres
of land with 3,533 square feet used by the campus and 300 square feet used by Centennial to operate a bank branch. Centennial is responsible for
all construction costs. The lease is for a term of twenty-five years with an option to renew for two periods of seven years each.

NOTE 20.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Beebe and Newport
On June 8, 2017, the Board of Trustees approved to proceed with a guaranteed energy cost savings capital project and related financing at the
Beebe and Newport campuses. The performance contract will provide needed campus-wide energy improvements that includes lighting retrofits,
water and waste management strategies, chiller upgrades, as well as installation of other energy control mechanisms. The Newport campus project
also includes installation of a solar panel array to generate renewable energy for the campus. The cost of the project is estimated to be $9.2 million.
The project is expected to be financed from the Higher Education Revolving Loan Fund and a tax-exempt capital lease agreement at an estimated
maximum interest rate of 3.30% for a term not to exceed 20 years. The projected annual debt service is approximately $626,803 and will be repaid
from the guaranteed utility and operational savings generated by the energy improvements.
The project at Beebe is scheduled to begin Fall 2017 and has an estimated cost of $5,238,065. The project will be financed with a tax-exempt capital lease and a $100,000 loan. The request for proposal for the tax-exempt capital lease is scheduled to begin September 2017.
The project at Newport is scheduled to begin Fall 2017 and has an estimated cost of $3,951,079. Newport received a $1 million loan on August 8,
2017 for the project. The loan will be repaid over a 15 year period with an interest rate of 1.3% per annum. Additional financing for the remaining
cost of the project will be obtained with a tax-exempt capital lease.
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Jonesboro
On September 15, 2017, The University entered into a long-term lease agreement with the City of Imboden to construct a facility for the Disaster
Preparedness Training Program. The lease will have an initial term of fifty (50) years, and may be renewed, at the University’s option, for five (5)
additional terms of five (5) years each. The premises, comprising of 183.189 acres of undeveloped land, will be rent-free for the first five (5) years
of the lease, and shall have an annual rent of $10,000 for every year thereafter. The University has the right to construct buildings and other improvements on the property at its sole discretion. Any improvements constructed on the premises shall be and shall remain the property of the University until disposed of by the University.
On September 15, 2017, The University entered into a long-term lease agreement with the City of Walnut Ridge to construct a facility for the Disaster Preparedness Training Program. The lease will have an initial term of fifty (50) years, and may be renewed, at the University’s option, for two
(2) additional terms of five (5) years each. The premises, comprising of 100 acres of undeveloped land at the Walnut Ridge Airport, will have an
annual rent of $12,500, which shall be adjusted every five (5) years by the greater of (3%) or the cumulative average annual change in the Consumer Price Index. For the first two (2) years of the University’s tenancy, the City of Walnut Ridge shall pay the annual rent on behalf of the University. The University has the right to construct buildings and other improvements on the property at its sole discretion. Any improvements constructed on the premises shall be and shall remain the property of the University until disposed of by the University.
On September 22, 2017, the University had the grand opening for the Arkansas State University Campus Queretaro in Queretaro, Mexico. Classes
began on September 4th and the official 11th day enrollment is 220 students on the $100 million, state-of-the-art campus. The campus is the first
American-style university campus in Mexico. Arkansas State University CQ, A.C., (ASUCQ), a private foundation led by Mexico businessman
Ricardo Gonzalez, invested more than $100 million to build 800,000 square feet of academic and residential buildings and recreational facilities in
the first phase of the 370 acre campus and a 2,000 acre community development plan. State funds are not being used to build or operate the campus
and all of Jonesboro’s startup costs are reimbursed with funds from private gifts. The initial degree programs cover three major subject areas: business and communications, engineering and technology, and science. Eight undergraduate degrees and two graduate degrees are available for AState CQ students, and diplomas will be valid in both the United States and Mexico. Construction on six buildings has been substantially completed, with four more expected to be complete by the end of the year. Four additional residence hall buildings will be added next year and a second
academic building will be added in year three to support a projected 5,000 students in the first phase.
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Summary of Key Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Valuation year

July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2017

Actuarial cost method

Projected Unit Credit, level dollar

Amortization method

30 years, level dollar open amortization 6

Asset valuation method

N/A

6

Open amortization means a fresh-start each year for the cumulative unrecognized amount.

Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate

3.0%

Inflation rate

2.5%

Projected payroll growth rate

1.0% per year through 2018, then 2.5% thereafter.

Heath care cost trend rate for
medical and prescription drugs

Trend rates are 7% for fiscal year 2018 grading down to reach an ultimate trend rate of
5.00% in 2031.

General Overview of the Valuation Methodology
The estimation of the retiree healthcare benefit obligation is generally based on per participant contributions developed from recent periods for
which claims experience is available. The University provided actual per participant premiums for 2017.
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and
actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the Plan at the time of each valuation and on the pattern
of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan
members in the future.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce shortterm volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.
Valuation Year

July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2017

Date of Census Data

June 30, 2017

Actuarial Cost Method

Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method; Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) amortized on a level dollar basis over 30 years.

Annual Health Care Trend Rate

Trend rates are 7% for fiscal year 2017 grading down to reach an ultimate trend rate of
5.00% in 2031.

Discount Rate

3.0% per year

Inflation Rate

2.5% per year

Spouse Age Difference

Husbands are assumed to be three years older than wives for current and future retirees
who are married. 40% of employees are assumed to be married and cover their spouses
upon retirement.
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Mortality

Society of Actuaries (SOA) table.

Participation Rates

90% of employees currently enrolled in a medical plan are assumed to participate in the
retiree medical program. All employees are assumed to participate in the retiree life
insurance program.

Retirement Rates

Rates of retirement vary by age and service for eligible employees as shown below:

Termination Rates

Sample rates of termination are shown below:
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Pension Plans
Arkansas Teacher Retirement System
NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Information Related to Required Supplementary Schedules
A. Changes in benefit terms
There were no significant benefit changes for the year ended June 30, 2016.
B. Changes in assumptions
There were no significant changes in assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2016.
C. Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions
Valuation date

June 30, 2016

The actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30 of every year, which is one year prior to the beginning of
the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.
The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to determine contribution rates reported in the schedule of contributions:
Actuarial cost method

Entry age normal

Amortization method

Level percentage of payroll, closed

Amortization period

30 years

Asset valuation method

4-year smoothed market for funding purposes; 20% corridor

Wage inflation

3.25%

Salary increases

3.25% to 9.10%, including inflation

Investment rate of return

8.00%

Retirement age

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition. Last updated for the 2011 valuation pursuant to an experience study for
the period July 1, 2005 - June 30, 2010.

Mortality

RP-2000 Mortality Table for males and females projected 25 years with scale
AA (95% for men and 87% for women)
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Pensions Plans
Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System
NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Information Related to Required Supplementary Schedules
A. Changes in benefit terms
There were no significant changes in benefit terms for the year ended June 30, 2016.
B. Changes in assumptions
There were no significant changes in assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2016.
C. Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions
Valuation date

June 30, 2016

The actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.
The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to determine contribution rates reported in the schedule of contributions:
Actuarial cost method

Entry Age Normal

Amortization method

Level of Percent of Payroll

Amortization period

21 year closed

Asset valuation method

4-year smoothed market with 25% corridor

Investment rate of return

7.50%

Projected salary increases

3.95 – 9.85% including inflation

Inflation rate

2.50%

Post-retirement cost-of-living increases

3% Annual Compounded Increase

Mortality table

RP-2000 Combined Health mortality table, projected to 2020 using Projection
Scale BB, set-forward 2 years for males and 1 year for females
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Statistical Section
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This section of the report provides information for understanding the financial statements and notes as well as the overall
health of the University and the state of Arkansas.
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